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Tr. No. 83-13318-21(CPS)
- against - T 18, ULS.C., 8% 1960ta)
(19%4y, 198d(a)y (2001,
ABAD FLFGEEH and 2, 371, 282 and 3551
AREF ELFGEEH, at seqg.; T. 2i, U.S5.C.,
£ Bh3)
Defendanls.
_.__.__._._._m,mm.wm.__._._.__x

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES:
INTRODUCTION

Pronibition of Unlicorsed Money Transmititing 3usiness

At ail times relevant .o tnris Indictmert, unless
otherwise indicateod:

1. Prior to November 1, cO0C1, <ne term “ilicgal money
transmlitting pusiness” was defined in Titls 1%, united States Code,
Section 1860(b) (1) (R) to include any money transmitting business
that affected interstate or foreign commerce in any manner or
degree and was iolentionally uperated withoul an appropriale money
transmitting license in a State where such operation was punishable
as a misdemeanor or a felony under State law. After November 1,
2001, the term “unlicenscd moncy tranomitting business” was defined
in Title 18, United States Cecde, Section 1960(b) (1} (A} to include

any money transmitting business that affected interstate or foreign

commerce in any manner or degree and that was aperated without an
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appropriate money transmitting license in a State where such
cperation was punishable as & misdemeancr or a felony under State
law, regardless of whether the coperator knew that the operation was
reguired to be licensed or that the c¢peration was so punishable,

2. The term “mcney transmitting” was defined in Title
18, United States Code, Section 1960(b) (2) tec include transferring
funds on behalf of the public by any and all means including but
not Iimited to transfers within the country or to locations abroad
by wire, check, draft, facsimile, or courier.

3. Pursuant to New York State Banking Law Section
650{Z) (a), the operation of an unlicensed money transmitting
business was punishable as a misdemeanor; pursuant to New York
State Banking Law Section 650(2){b){1), the cperation of an

unllicensed money transmitting business was punishable as a felony

single transaction, $25,000 or more for transmission in a period of
thirty days or less, or $250,000 for transmission in a period of a
year or less.
COUNT ONE

1. The allecgations containcd in paragraphs onc
through three are realleged and incorporated as if fully set
forth in this paragraph.

5.- In or about and between January 1895 and October

2001, both dates being approximate and inclusive, within the
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Eastern District of New York and elsewhsre, the defendant ABAD
ELFGEEH, together with others, did knowingly and intenticnally
conspire to conduct, control, manage, supervise, direct and own
all and part of a business, knowing that the business was an
illegal money transmitting business, which affected interstate
and foreign commerce, 1n viclation of Title 18, United States
Code, Section 1%60(a) (19%84).

. In furtherance cf the conspiracy and to effect its
objectives, within the Eastern District of New York and
elsewhere, the defendant ABAD ELFGEEH, tocgether with othars,
committed and caused to be committed, among others, the
following:

OVERT ACTS

(a) Un or about Cctober 23, 1995, the detendant ABAD

CELEGEEH 8Ra 8 COSConRsSpiTator caused 5 Wite FrAnsFer Th tHe Ameunt

of $30,000 to be made from a bank account in Brooklyn, New York
in the name of Carnival French Ice Cream Supermarket to a bank
account in Italy.

(b} On cr about May 23, 19856, the delendant ABAD
ELFCEEH and a co-conspirator caused a wire transfer 1In the amount
of $50,000 to be made from a bank account in Brooklyn, New York
in the name of Carnival French Ice Cream Supermarket to a bhank

accoount in Switzerland.
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{c) On or about June 8, 2001, the defendant ABAD
ELFGEEH and a co-conspirator caused a wire transfer in the amount
of $140,000 to be made from a bank account in Brooklyn, New York
in the name of Carnival French Ice Cream Supermarket to a bank

account in Yemen.

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 371 and 3551 et

COUNT TWO
7. The allegations contained in paragraphs one
through three are realleged and incorporated as if fully set
forth in this parayrapl:.
8. In or about and between January 1985 and Cctober
2001, both dates being approximate and inclusive, within the

Eastern Digtrict of New York and clscwhere, the defendant ABAD

supervise, direct and own all and part of a business, knowing
that the business was an illegal monay transmitting business,
which affected interstate and foreign commerce.

{Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1960(a) (1994}
and 33551 et seq.)

GOUNT THREE

g. The allegations contained in paragraphs one
through three are realleged and incorporated as if fully set

forth in this paragraph.
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10. In or abkcut and between November 2001 and January
2003, both dates being approximate and inclusive, within the
Eastern District of New York and elsewhere, the defendants ABAD
ELFGEEH and AREF ELFGEEH, together with others, did knowingly and
intentionally conspire to conduct, control, manage, supervise,
direct, and own all and part of an unlicensed money transmitting
business, which affected interstate and foreign commerce, in
violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1960 (a)
(2001 .

1i. In furtherance of the conspiracy and to effect its
objectives, within the Eastern District of New York and
elsewhere, the defendants ABAD ELFCEEH and AREF ELFGEEH, together
with others, committed and caused to be committed, among cthers,
the following:
....... Ly ——
(a) On or about November 6, 2001, the defendants ABAD
ELFGEEH and AREF ELFGZEH and & co-conspirator caused a wire
transfer in the amcunt of 525,000 to be made from a bank account
in Brocklyn, New York in the name of Carnival French Ice Cream
Supcrmarket to a bank account in Thailand.

{b} On or about January 10, 2002, the defendants ABAD
ELFGEEH and AREF ELFGEEH and a co~conspirator caused a check
drawn on a bank account in the names of “Aref A. ElFgeeh” and

“Mahmood ElFgeeh,” in the amount of 39,000, toe be deposited in a
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&
bank account in Brocklyn, New York in the name of Carnival French
Ice Cream Supermarket.

{(c) 0On or about January 11, 2002, the defendants ABAD
ELFGEEH and AREF ELFGEEH and a co-conspirator caused a wire
transfer in the amount of 510,000 to be made from a bank account
in Brooklyn, New York in the name of Carnival French Ice Cream
Supermarket to a bank account in Thailand.

(Title 18, United 3tates Code, Sectiens 371 and 3551 et

COUNT FOUR
12. The allegations contazined in paragraphs one
through three are realleged and incorpcrated as if fully set
forth in this paragraph.

13, In or abcut and between November 2001 and January

Eastern District of New York and elsewhere, the defendants ABAD
ELFGEEH and AREF ELFGEEH did knowingly and intenticnally conduct,
control, manage, supervise, direct, and own all! and part of an
unlicensed money transmitting business, which affected interstate
and foreign commerce, in viclation of Title 18, United States
Code, Section 1860 (a) (2001).

(Titlie 18, United States Code, Sections 1860(a)} (2001),

2 and 3551 et segq.)
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CRIMINAL PORFEITURE ALLEGATION

14. The United States hereby gives notice to the
defendants charged in Counts One, Two, Three, and Four that, upon
thelir conviction of any such offenses, the government will seek
forfeiture in accordance with Title 18, United States Code,
Section 982, of all property involved in each offense of
conviction in wviolation of Title 18, United States Code, Section
1960, or conspiracy te commit such offense, and &ll property
traceable to such property, itncluding but not Jimited to,. the

following:

a. all funds on deposit in JP Morgan Chase bank
account number 094-0617502-65 in the name of
Carnival French Tce Cream Supermarket;

b. all funds on depcsit in Astoria Federal Savings
accocunt number 91-514352-4 in the name of Aref A,
ElFgeeh and Mahmood ElFgeeh; and

o

account number 094-~0723858-65 in the name of
Prospect Deli.

15. If any of the above-described forfeitable
property, as a result of any act or omission of the defendant(s):

(g} «cannot be located upon the exercise of due
diligence;

{b} has been transferred or sold to, or depcsited
with, a third party:

(c} has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the

court;

SR T T Ty dé;ﬁbsit“in 55 Mof@aﬂ By ——
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{d) has been substantially diminished in value: or

(e} has been commingled with other property which
cannot be divided without difficulty:
it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 21,
United States Code, Section 853{p), to seek forfeiture cof any
other property of such defendant{s) up tec the value of the
forfeitable property described in subparagraphs 14{a) through (c¢)
above.

(Title 18, United States Code, Section 882; Title 21,
United States Code, Section BS53(p}!)

A TRUL BILL
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UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

FASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN Distzict of NEW [ YORK
CHIMINAL Uw<pmwm:

THE UNITED STATES OF wzmenw

V5.

ABAD ELFGEEH aid AREF ELFGEEH,

Defendants.

P v
f— —

SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT

{(T. 18, U.5.C., E&% HmmoAmuﬁHmwpu‘WHmmoﬂmVHwoDH“~
2, 371, 982 ard 3551 et seq.; T. 21 U.S.C.., § 8453)

e

A true bill.

Forerman

Filed in c¢pen court this day .
of A.D. 20

Clerk
Bail, &

i

PAMELA CHEN (718) 254-7575
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INFORMATION SHEET Fl LED
U.S. DRaERK'S OFFice
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT *' : ey
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK JUN D3 2004

BROOKLYN OFFICE
1. Title of Case: _ United States v. Abad Elfeeeh and Arcet Elfsech

2 Related Magistrate Docket Number(s) M-03-06!4 3 3
None () C 0 .
3. ArestDate: _ Abad Elfech - 2/3/03 Aref Elfoeeh - 12/22/03

4. Nature of oftense(s): X Felony
O Misdemcanor

3. Reluted Civil or Criminal Cases - Title and Docket No(s}. (Pursuant to Rule 50.3 of the
Local E.D.INY. Division of Business Rules)y: U.S. v. Aref Elfgeeh, CR-04-268

0. Projected Length of I'mal: Less than 6 weeks (X)
More than 6 wecks ()

7. County in which cnime was allegedly committed: __Kings
(Pursuant to Rule 50.1(d} of the Local ED.N.Y. Division of Business Rules)

. 8_ e Has thisindictlnent bce]] Orderedseu]ed? T P P ( ) YGS(X‘) NO ..........
9. Have arrest warrants been ordered? {)Yes (X)No
10. Is a capital count included in the indictment? () Yes (X)No

ROSLYNN R. MAUSKOPF
UNITED-STATES ATTORNEY

By: "/'L’Z',,_-—P—_\
Pamela Chen S~
Assistant U.S. Attorney
(718) 254-7575

Rev. 16/01/03



